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Audited accounts
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HSBC Electronic Data Processing India
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Report on audit of the financial statements

Page 2 of 4

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(s) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» - Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
itappears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of the books of accounts and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located.
in India.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our comments in paragraph 11(b) above that the backup of the books of accounts and other books and
papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with referénce to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 25 to the financial statements.
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ii. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021 for
which there were no material foreseeable losses.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

12. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

S(rf%anth M

Partner
Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 220916

Date: September 21, 2021 UDIN: 21226316 AAAABYYUS30



Annexure A to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 11(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HSBC
Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under

Clause

1.

(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HSBC
Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

o

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of intérnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements,
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Annexure A to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 11(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HSBC
Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2021
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Measning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely détection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

R

Srikanth Pola
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 220916
Date: September 21, 2021 UDIN: 2.i22.03 16 AAAABY Y990



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HSBC
Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
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The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets.

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year
and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the
financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company. .

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
in respect of income tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and service tax and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the particulars of dues of income tax, service tax, provident fund and value added
tax as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HSBC
Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2021
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Name of the Nature of dues | Amount Period to which | Forum where the
statute (Rs. In the amount dispute is pending
lakhs)* relates
Income Tax Act, | Fringe Benefit 174.10 | FY 2005-06 Commissioner of
1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals),
Hyderabad
Income Tax Act, | Tax and Interest 4,031.02 | FY 2009-10, Income Tax
1961 FY 2011-12 Appellate Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Tax and Interest 5,346.70 | FY 2006-07, Commissioner of
1961 FY 2010-i1, Income Tax
FY 2012-13, (Appeals),
FY 2014-15, Hyderabad
FY 2015-16,
FY 2016-17
West Bengal Penalty under 129.34 | FY 2006-07 West Bengal
Value Added Section 78 and 79 Taxation Tribunal,
Tax Act, 2003 of the Act Kolkata
West Bengal Tax, Interest and 106.99 | FY 2014-15 Senior Joint
Value Added Late Fee Commissioner,
Tax Act, 2003 Commercial taxes
Haryana Value | Tax, Interest and 0.84 | FY 2015-16 Joint Excise and
Added Tax Act, | Late Fee Taxation
2003 Commissioner
(Appeals)
Haryana Value | Tax, Interest and 12,157.94 | FY 2015-16 Joint Excise and
Added Tax Act, | Late Fee Taxation
2003 Commissioner
(Appeals)
The Finance Service Tax, 4,290.68 | FY 2008-09 to FY Customs, Excise and
Act, 1994 Penalty under the 2017-18 Service Tax
(Service Tax) Finance Act, 1994 Appellate Tribunal
The Employees’ | Employer’s 3,535.95 | FY 2008-09 to FY The Regional P.F
Provident Fund | contribution to 2015-16 Commissioner — 1,
and Provident Fund Hyderabad Region
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act
1952

* Amounts paid under protest aggregating to Rs. 359.22 lakhs is reduced from the amounts
demanded in arriving at the aforesaid disclosure.

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xii.

Xiii,

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
comparnies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 12 of our main audit report.

‘As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the

provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under audit. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

el

Srikanth Pola
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 220916
Date: September 21, 2021 UDIN: 21220316 AAAABYUIIO



HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As 3l As at
Note 31 march 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 46,561.20 39,43152
Right-of-use asset a $1,291.41 67,670.66
Capital work-in-progress 3 60.22 1,302.96
intangible assets 5 513.08 230.48
financial assets
i} Other financial asseis 6{c) S5,100.45 7,947.01
Ueteiréd tax assets 1 15,440.57 12,787.17
Income tax-assets 8 15,282,20 15.689.35
Qther non-current assels 10 16,975.12 17,643.73
Total non-cutrent assets . 151,204.25 162,703.48
Current assets
Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 6(a) 44,476.93 45,800.01
i) Cash and cash equivalents 6(b) 101,624.41 101,378.53
iii) Other financiat assets 6{c} 3,247,723 828.81
Contract assets 9 837.70 -
Other cusrent assets 10 8,941.78 9.929:96
Total current assets 159,128.55 157,937.31
Total assets 310,332.80 320,640.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 35,546.78 35,546.78
Other equity 12 145,883.94 123,144.85
‘Total equity 181,430.72. 158,691.63
Liabilities
Non:current liabilitles
Financial liabilities
ijLease liabilities 13(b) 44,712.80 58,593.14
Provistons 14 £.133.50 5.166.10
Employee benefit obligaticns 15 5,266.71 8,410.23
Tota) non-current Nabilities $5,119.01 72,169.47
Current Habilities
Financial liabifities
i) Current borrowings 13(a) . 15,000.00
ii} Lease liabilities 13(b) 11,491.95 10,657.31
iii) Trade payable
a) Total outstanding dues of
micro and small enterprises 13(c) - .
b) Total outstancing dues other
than (iii) (2) above 13{c) 13,605.26 9.722.63
iv) Other financial fiabilitics 13(d) 1,353.68 1,182.23
Peovisions 14 1,537.97 1,532.97
Contract liabilities 9 - 16,104,358
Employce benefit obligations 15 4,857.25 S
Current tax liabitities 16 1,496.07 42.84
Ocher.current liabilities 17 39,640.89 35,532.36.
Tota! current liabilities 73,783.07 89,779.69
Total liabilities 128,902.08 161,949.16
Total equity and liabllities 310,332.80 320,640.79
Significant accounting policies t
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the linancial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred.to in oiir report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chortered Accouniants LLP @and on behalf of Board o[ Directors
Firm Registration Number:012754N/N500016 W
: Unls
th Pola Paul Anthony Radden Mamatha Madireddy
Parther Director Oirector

Membership No: 220916 DIN:OS!O;SS% . DIN: 09174826

Rashika U DUGAR
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 September 2021 Date: 21 Sepiember 2021




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except earning per share and where otherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations 18 551,181.17 531,029.67
Other income 19 3,029.83 10,523.26
Tatal revenue 554,211.00 541,552.93
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 329,264.17 318,491.58
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 29,282.77 29,055.84
Finance costs 22 6,765.61 10,432.24
Other expenses 23 104,609.78 104,223.956
Total expenses 469,922.33 462,203.62
Profit before tax 84,288.67 79,349.31
Income tax expense
Current tax 24 24,470.26 22,654.12
Deferred tax 7,24 (2,762.47) 3,288.96
Total tax expense 21,707.79 25,943.08
Profit for the year 62,580.88 $3,406.23
Other comprehensive income
Items thot will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post employment benefits obligations 435,78 382.77
income tax relating to these items {109.67) {96.34}
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 326.08 286.43
Total comprehensive income for the year 62,906.96 53,692.66
€arnings per equity share [par value of INR. 100 each (previous year 27
INR. 100 each))
8asic and diluted 176.05 150.24
Number of shares used in computing éarning per share )
Basic - par value INR. 100 per share 35,546,781 35,546,781
Diluted - par value INR, 100 per share 35,546,781 35,546,781
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral pact of the financials statements.
This is the Staterment of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Wotérhouse Chortered Accountonts LLP Férand an behalf of Boord of Directors
Firm Registration Number:01754N/N500016 £ ]
| — j | { p .} V% ‘_"’-‘-—:.
< 7\ A 4 16 A
Srikanth Pola Paul Anthony Raddon Mamatha Madireddy
Partner Oirectaor Director
Membership No: 220916 DiN: 08109337 . DIN: 09174826

G
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Rashika U DUGAR
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 September 2021 Date: 21 September 2021
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Statemant of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
[Al amounts In Indian tupees lakhs, except share date and where othenwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 mMarch 2021 31 March 2020
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Prolit before tax 84,288.67 79,349,34
Adjustments:
interest income on fixed deposit {1,725.59) (1,204.86}
inierest income on secutity deposit (681.70) (727.2%)
interest on decomissioning liabililty 446,94 416.61
Gain on raversal of lease tiability (599.87) .
Interest on borrowing 421.74 3,048.52
Interest on lease lability 5,896.93 6,967.11
{Profit)/Loss on sale of Praperty, plant and equipment 467,69 86.22
Write off of Progerty, plant and equipment 5$18.96 -
Depreciation and amortization 29,282.77 29,055.84
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 1,323.01 (4.565.96}
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 119,639.55 112,425.54
[»! /1 )in teade bles {410.96) 8,909.0%
Decrease/ {Incresse) in RQU asset 1,773.34 .
Cecrense/ {increase) in other cursent financial assets {2,418.92) 6,388.56
Cecrease/ (Increase) in other non-current financial assets 3,528.26 1,174.85
Cecrease/ {Increase) in othes cursent assets 588.18 (3,137.13)
Dacraase/ {Increase) in contract assets (837.70) 11,580.23
Oecrease/ (Increase) in other non-current pssets 773.78 4,182.74
Increasef {Decrease) In fease liability (2.156.71) -
Increasef {Deciease) in trade payoble 3,776.97 {9.320.96)
Increasef [Decrease) in provisions {473.54) -
tncrease/ {Decrease) in other current financial liatilities 210.85 384.78
increase/ (Decrease) in other cureent liabllities 4,108.53 1,403.99
Decrease/ (Increase) In contract liabifities {16,104.35) 16,104.35
Increase/ {Decrease) in emptoyee benefit obligations 2,149.48 {1.235.23}
Cash generated from operations 114,546,73 148,850.81
Taxes paid {22.193.61) {27,730.47)
Net cash generated by aperoting activities 92,353.12 121,130.34
8. Cash flows from Investing activitics
Purchase of Proserty, plant and equip {tangible and intangible fixed assets, capital work (22,062.71) (25,887.01)
in progress)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plont and equipment 38.7% 44.0?
tnierest income on fixed deposit 1,725.59 1,204.86
Net cosh used in investing cctivities (20,297.37) (24.638.08}
C. Cash flows from financing activitics
Procecds/{repayment) from borrowlngs {15,000.00) (15,000.00)
{nterest on borrowing (a21.74) {3,068 52}
Prinicipal elements of lense payments {16,785.92) (37,990.62)
Oividend paid {36,151.08) -
Taxes on dividend {4,016.79) -
Net cash used in finoncing activities {72,375.53) [35,035.16[
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash-equivalents (315.79) 60,453.12
Cash and cash eguivatents at the beginning of period 101,378.53 38,089.63
Eifect of exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents 565.67 2,835.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of periad 101,624.41 101,378.53
Notes:
1. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with scheduled banks:
-in current accounts 3,440.44 11,398.84
- in current acccunts (outside India) 1,366.16 $69.36
- in deposit accounts 92,131.95 59,455.43
- in export earners foreign currency accounts 4,685.86 29.954.20
101,624.41 101,378.53

Amount spent in eash towards carporate social responsibility is INR 1,516.86 takhs (Pdacch 2020 - INR 1,398.06 lakhs)
This is the-Cash flow statement referred 15 In our report of even date.

For Price h Choriéred Ac e on behalf of 8oard of Dicectors

Firm Registrotion Number.012754N/N500016

(o~ oLz
Srikanth Pola Paul Anthony Raddon Mamatha Madircddy

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 220916 DIN: Oﬂlwg&la . DIN: 09174826
i

Rashika U DUGAR
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad ’ Place: Hyderabad
‘Date: 21 September 2021 Date: 21 September 2021
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing india Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

(A1 amounts are if Indian rupees lakhs,except share cata and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particutars Note Amount
As at ist April 2019 11 35,546.78
Changes in equity share capital .
As at 31 March 2020 35,546.78
Changes in equity share tapital

As at'31 March 2021 35,546.78

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Share options outstanding

Particulars Note Securities premium reserve Retained earnings General reserve account Total other equity
Balance as'at 1st April 2019 12 5,564.72 54,269.83 8,350.53 1.267.11 69,452.19
Profit for the year - $3,406.23 - - 53,406.23
Other comprehensive income. - 286.43 - - 286.43
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5,564.72 107.962.49. ‘8,350.53 1,267.11 123,144.85
Profit for the year - 62,580.88 - - 62,580.88
Other comprehensive income. - 326.08 - - 326.08
-Dividends paid {including corporate dividend tax) - (40,167.87) - - {60.167.87)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5.564.72 130,701.58 8,350.53 1,267.11 145,883.94

Significant accounting policies : 1
The accompanying notes are anvintegral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to-in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm it 012,
Srikanth Pola M
Partner

Membership No: 220916

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 21 September 2021

jﬂ}.and on behoif of Boord of Directors

Paul Anthony Raddon
Director

DIN: 08109337
W\.\ﬁ{m/ ’

Rashika U DUGAR
Company Secretary

Placer Hyderabad
Date: 21 September 2021

W

Mamatha Madireddy
Director
DIN: 09174826



HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Company overview

HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited ("HDPI" or “the Company”) was incorporated on 14 March 2000 as a
wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings B.V., Netherlands. HSBC Holdings plc, U K. is the ultimate holding Company.

The Company provides electronic data processing, call center and professional services (coilectively referred to as “back
office services”) to the HSBC group companies. The Company has a branch in London, UK.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Thase
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation
{1) Compliance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards notified undeér Seétion 133 of the
Companies.Act, 2013 [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other provisions of the Act.

{ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
* Derivative instruments are measured at fair value;
» Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and
¢ Share based payments recorded at fair value.

(i'ii) New and amended standards adopted by the entity

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2020:

»  Definition of Material - amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8
¢ COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to ind AS 116
e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments to Ind AS 109 and [nd AS 107

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods,

b) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported.in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

The Board of Directors of HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited assesses the financial performance and
financial position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. The Board of Directors has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker, Refer note 28 for segment information presented.

¢) Foreign currency translation
{1} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {INR), which is the
Company's functional and presentation cufrency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates on the date of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rates are generally recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss

on a net basis.




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

d) Revenue recognition

(i) Timing of recognition:

Revenue from back-office services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
(i) Measurement of revenue:

Ravenue from back-office services rendered to group companies is recognized on a cost plus basis as per the terms of the
contract with the parties. Revenue in excess of billing on back-office services is recorded as contract asset and is included
under other current financial assets. If the payment exceeds the services rendered, contract liability is recognised.

e) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method; on temporary differences arlsing between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 3 legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and fabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

f) Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the entity. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The entity allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alaone prices. Assets and liabilities arising
from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.

Lease liability include the net present value of the following lease payments:
a) Fixed payments less any lease incentive receivables

b) Variable lease payments that are based cn an Index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

¢} Amounts expected to bé payable by the entity under residual value guarantee
d) The exercise price of a purchase option if the entity is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the entity exercising that option.
ay p g y = Y B P




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case.for leases in the entity, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Lease payments are
atlocated between princ'ipal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or {oss over the lease period. Right of use
assets are measured at cost comprising following:

a) The amount of initial measurement of lease liability

b) Any Iease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
¢} Any initiai direct costs-and

d) Restoration cost

Right of use assets are measured generally depreciated over the sharter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasanably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
‘over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with contracts that do not qualify under leases as per IND AS 116, short-term leases of equipment and
all leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense over the lease term on straight-line basis or another systematic basis
if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the benefit. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertibie to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

h) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subséquently measured at amortized cosi using the eifective
interest method, less provisionfor impairment, if any.

i) Financial assets
(i) Ciassification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
{a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive incaome, or through

Statement of Profit and loss), and
{b) Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

{ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financiai asset not at fair

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company’s debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and intérest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss
.on a debtinstrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized In the Statement.of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the
effective interest rate method.




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

{ili) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with iis assets carried at amortized
cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 33
detaiis how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 103-“Financial Instruments”,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized anly when

. The Company has transferred the rights to recelve cash flow from the financial asset; or
. retzins the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual
abligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substaatially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financiai asset.

{v} Income recognition

Interest incoime from the debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash
flows by considerlng all the coniractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

j) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company enters into forward contracts to hedge risks
which are not designated as hedges. Such forward contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit of loss.

k) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

{i}) Deemed cost:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has efected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at 01 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment.




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

{ii) Decommissioning obligation in¢luded in the cost of property, piant and equipment:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to make no changes in the decommissioning, restoration or similar liability
before the transition date to be added to or deducted from the cost.of the asset to which it relates. The Company measured
the fiability as at the date of transition to ind AS that would have been included in the cost of the related asset when the
liabllity first arose, by discounting the liability to that date using its best estimate of the historical risk adjusted discount
rate(s) that would have applied for that liability over the intervening period and calculate the accumulated depreciation on
that amount, as at the date of transition to Ind AS, on the basis of the current estimate of the useful life of the asset, using
the depreciation policy adopted.

(iii) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Oepreciation is calculated using the straight line method to altocate the cost, net of the residual values, over their useful lives
estimated by the Management, except in case of leasehold improvements which are amortized over the primary period of
the lease or estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. The Management estimated useful lives for fixed assets
and rates prescribed under Schedule Il are as follows:

Asset Category Estimated Useful life Useful life under Schedule i}
Computers 3to S years 3to 6 years
- Air-conditioners 10 years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years
Office equipment's 5 years 5 years
Electrical equipment’s 5 years 10 years
Telecommunication equipment’s 7 years 5 years
Vehicles Syears 8 years

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert and reflect the
actual usage of the assets.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted ii aporopriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within other income/ {expenses).

i) Intangible assets

{i) Amortization methods and periods

The Company amortizes intangible assets on straight line value basis over their estimated useful life not exceeding 5 years.
{ii) Transition to Ind AS

On transition 1o ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets recognized as
at'01 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

m) Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

n) Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are presented by deducting the grant from
carrying value of the amount.

o) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and .other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized’
initially at their f3ir value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

p) Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to theé liability. The increase in the
provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

q) Employee benefits
{i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, inclugding non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as other current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

(ii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit gratuity plan, and
(b}  Defined Contribution plans such as provident fund and national pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan

The liability or assets recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benelit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined bénefit obligation are determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in indian rupees fakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurements gains 2nd losses arising from experiance adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the
Statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in the Statement of Prolfit and Loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered funds as per local regulations and makes
contribution to the national pension scheme. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as an
employee benefit expense when they are due.

{iif) Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to the employees of HSBC Electronic Data Procassing India Private Limited
via the HSBC Group Share Match, Share Save and Share option schemes.

For the Share Match and Share Save schemes the employees are entitled to the shares of HS8C holdings plc. However, there
is no cross charge from the ultimate holding company on account of shares allotted under these schemes. The fair value of
options granted under these schemes is recognized as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity.

Under the Share option scheme, the entity receives a cross charge from the ultimate holding company. Accordingly the fair
value of such aptions granted under these schemes is recognized as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding
impact in other current financial liability.

The totat amount to be expensed with respect io the Share Match, Share Save and Share Option schemes is determined with
reference to the fair value of options granted:

- including any market performance conditions
- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions; and
- including the impact of any nen-vesting conditions.

The expense is recognized aver the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revisits its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
Statement of Profit.and Loss, with 3 corresponding adjustment to share options outstanding account.

r) Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

s) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

t} Earning per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
. By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares (note 27).
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(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings pér share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take inte account:

. The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,
and

. The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of al dilutive potential equity shares.

u) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in thé financial statements and notés have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

v} Standards issued but not yet effective
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.
Note 2: Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom eéqual the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overvidw of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be matefially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed.

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information
about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

. Estimated useful life of tangible and intangible assets - Note 3'and 5
. Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 15

. Estimation of provisions - Note 31

. Estimation of decommissioning liability - Note 31

. Estimation of fair value of forwards - Note 35

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances..

&
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Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

particutars Leasehold Computers - Air Fledrltai Telu(nm Furniture and vehicies . Office Total Capital work-in-|

improvements fixtures equipments progress)

Year-ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening grass carrying amount 12,354.91 18,991.43 1,703.10 1.984.87 7,704.29 3,183.58 112.26 3,952.56 49,987.00 4,700.90
Additions during the year 14,681.59 8,291.12 $96.80 362.80 4,163.93 1,729.00 - 573.88 30,199.12 27,139.41
Disposals during the year (248.24) {15.82) (22.13) (58.72) 9.11) {329.64) (27.78) {71.20} {782.64) -
Transfers - = - - - - - - - {30,517.35),
Closing gross carrying amount 26,588.26 27,266.73 2,272.77 2,288.95 11,859.11 4,582.94 84.48 4,855.24 79,403.48 1,302.96
Accumulated deprediation

Opening accumulated depreciation 5.897.70 12,363.67 72881 1,223.58 3,703.63 2,014.21 77.16 2,426.21 28,434.97 -
Depreciation charge during the year 4,460.29 4,242.67 199.33 365.92 1,433.90 774.39 11.51 70133 12,189.33 -
Disposals during the year (248.24) (15.70) (3.22) {57.10) (3.42) {253.63} 19.55) (51.49) 652.35) -
Closing accumulated depreciation 10.109.75 16,590.64 924.92 1,532.40 5,134.11 2,534.97 69.12 3,076.05 39,971.96 -
Net carrying amount 16,478.51 10,676.09 1,352.85 756.55 6,725.00 2,042.97 1536 1.379.19 39,431.52 1,302.96
Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 26.588.26 27,266.73 221717 2,288.95 11,858.11 4,582.94 84.48 4,455.24 79,403.48 1,302.96
Additions during the year 3,384.91 11,256.38 403.95 475.34 5,733.73 777.44 - 629.89 22,661.64 21,852.79
Disposals during the year [1,554.30) {335.29) (315.84) (622.14) (215.18) {192.47) - {295.43) {3.530.65) -
Transfers - - - - - - - - - (23.,095.53)
Closing pross carrying amount 28,418.87 38,187.82 2,365.88 2,142:15 17,377.66 5,167.91 84,48 4,789.70 98,534.47 60.22
Accumulated depreciation

Opening atcumulated depreciation 10,109.75 16,590.64 924.92 1,532.40 5,134.11 2,534.97 69.12 3,076.05 39,971.96

Depseciation charge during the year 3,982.43 6,374.33 20414 393.57 1,997.45 934.31 5.12 634.21 14,525.56

Disposals during the year (1,072.04) (335.29) (132.67) (581.00) {70.52) {165.98) - {146.75} (2.504.25)

osing accumulated depreciation 13,020.14 22,629.68 996.39 1,344.97 7.061.04 3.303.30 74.24 3,563.51 51.993.27

Net carrying amount 15.398.73 15,558.14 1,369.49 797.18 10,316.62 1.864.63 10.24 1,226.19 46.541.20 60.22
Notes !

i} Refer nate 25 for disclosure of contractual commitments for acquisition of property,plant and equipment
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Noto 4: Right-ol-use 2330t
This note provides infermation for feases where the group s a lessee.

i} Amount recognised in balance sheet
As a1 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Buaitdings 5120181 61,670.66
Total 5$1,291.41 67,670.65

ii} Amount recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss

Particutars As 3t 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Depreciatinn charge of Right-of-usé asset

Buitcings 12.605.91 16,346.52

Iotal . - e 14.605.91 16.346.52

Particutary Notes As at 31 Morch 2021 As ot 31 Murch 2020
interest expense {included i finance costs] 2 6,343.87 728372
Exgenses relating (o short-term leases (included m oshes expenses) 3 83523 88728

Erpenses refaung to leasas of 104 value assets that are not shown obove as short term

Ivases {included i oiher eagenses} b2} 40.89 60.63

Totai 7,019.97 2,331.63
Tha total €ash auiflow fur [eases for 1he year was INR 16.7§5,92 (31 March 2020 veas INR 17,930 61f,

Note 5: Intangible assets

Particulary Computer Software:
Year ended 31 March 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening Gross corrying amasnt 2.089.82
Additiens during the year 318.23
Closing gross carrying amouat 3,408.06
Accurnulated depreciation

Cpening acceurnulated depreaation 2,6572.60
Depreciation charge during the year 510.98
Clasing accumulated depreciation 3,177.58
Net carrying amountt i 236.48

Yaar ended 31 fassch 2023
Gross ¢arrying amount

Qpening gross carrying amowunt 3,408.06
Additrans dosmg the year 433.89
Clo:in; £ross carrylag smount 3,841.95
Afcumulatad depreciation

Opening acccumulated depreciation 317758
Depreaation charge dunng the year 151.29
Closing accumulated depreciation 3,328.87
Het carvying amount 513.08

Note & Finnncinl assets
Note 6{8): Trade raceivables

Particulars Asat 31 Morch 2021 As 31 31 Masch 2020
Unsetured, considered good
Trade recesvables from cefated parties {refer note 26) 44,476.93 45.800.0)

Unsecured, considered doubtiul

Trade recevables from rolated parties {refer nate 26)

Leas: Provision for doubtful debits - -
Total 44,476.93 45,800.01

Curreat poriinn 44,476.93 4%,800.01
Non-¢current posiion. . .

Note 6{b): Cash and cash vqulwamu

Particulars Al 8t 31 March2021  As at 31 March 2020
Batances with banks |1eter note 25}

~in current accoums 3,440.44 11,398.84
-in current accounts {outside tndia) 1,366.16 $69.36
-in EEFC accounts 4.685.85 29.954.90
Beposits with maturity of fess than 3 avanths (including tnterest acceued thereon) 9213195 $0.455.63
Total 101,624.41 101,378.53

Thete are no repairiation restrictions with regard 1o cash and cash equivalents a5 at the end of the reporting pericd and prior periods.

Note 6{c): Other finandal assets.

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Current Non:current Cureent Non.current
Security deposits
- Unsezured, conssderad paod 3,242.73 5,100.45 828.81 7,967.01

Total 3,247.73 $.100.85 828.81 1,947.01
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Note 71 Delerred tax assets
The balancn comprisés temporary diffarences sitributable to

Particulars

As 21 31 Morch 2021 .As ot 31 Merch 2020

Maperty plant dnd equipment and intangibles 4952.24 4,464.60
Orlined benefn sbligations 132552 2.116.68
Pravisions lor employee beaels 7.11366 5.109.80
Mark to market on dervaives 16.45 -

ROU.asset and iease hability 203270 1,696.69
Tots) 15,440.57 12,787.77

fMovement in deferred rax assets

Property plant &

equipment and Defined benalit Provisions far Mark to Markct ROU asset-and

1 bl blig ati toyes benelit  on derivatives  tease liability Total
As at 31 March 2019 £.581.33 3.504.26 6.676.13 101520 ~ 16.1473.06
{Charged)/credited:
» to profil or fosy 1516.83) 11,291.24) (1,566.33) {1.011.24) 1.095.69 (3.288.95)
- 10 other comprehenive income - 1986.32) - - R {96.34)
As at 31 March 2020 4,464.60 2,116.68 $,109.80 . 1096.69  12,747.77
{Charged)/cradited:
»10 protin of loss 487.64 (681.49) 2.003.86 16.95 936.01 2,262.47
~toother comprehensive intome (109.67) {109.67)
As at 31 March 2021 4952.24 1,325.52 7,193.66 16.45 2,032.70 15,248.57
Note 8: Income tax assets .
Pacticulars As at 31 March 2021 As 3t 31 March 2020

Current Nonscutrant Current Non-current

income tax paid undes protest - 19,327.31 - 15327 31
Advance tax, net of provisions for tax
INR 122,608.82 (2020 INR 119,676.09) 643358 - £,840.73
Less: Prowision agalast income tas hiigations (refer note 3] {10.478.69) (10,478.69)
Total - 15,282.20 - 15.689.25

Note 9: Contenct assets and contract llabililies

As st 3t March 2021

A3 at 31 March 2020

Particulars Current Non-current Cureant Non-currant
Coatract hatilities - - 16.104 35 -
Contract assets 837.70 - - -
Toual 83270 - 16,104.35 -

Significant changes in contract assots and liabilities -

- cantract habidiy of INR 16,104.35 labhs as 31 31 March 2020 reprasents revenuc bilfed to customers in advance and contract asset of INR 837,70 Jakhs as a1 3) March 2021 cepresents revenue pending

bilhing 1o customers (or the s3id penigd,

Note 10: Other asséts

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 A3 at 3t Moreh 2020

Current Non-current Cutrent Non-current
Unsecured considered good
Capnal advances - 10518 - -
Caims recaivablas . 8,966.56 . 9,196.08
Batances with governmenl authorities - 7.486.85 - 8,229.48
Prepasd expenses 2.839.08 2392 6,151.99 -
Security deposit - 20264 - 21821
Advances to suppher 1,102 70 - 3,777.97 -
Total 8,941.78 16,975.12° 9.929.96 17,643.73
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 11: Equity share capitat
Authorised

45,800,000 (as at 31 March 2020 : 45,800,000 } equity shares of INR 100
each 45,800.00 45,800.00

tssued, subscribed and paid-up

35,546,781 (as at 31 March 2020 : 35,546,781} equity shares of INR 100
each 35,546.78 35,546.78

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company’s residual assets. The
equily shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder an a poll {not on show of hands) are in
progortion to its share of the paid-up equily capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential
amounts.in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b} The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is set out below:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amobunt
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 35,546,781 35,546.78 35,546,781 35,546.78
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 35,546,781 -35,546.78 35,546,781 35,546.78

¢} The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at 31 March 2021 and as at 31 March 2020 are set out below:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
HS8C Holdings B.V., Netherlands 34,579,634 97.28% 34,579,634 97.28%
d) Sharés held by Company's holding company, ultimate holding company and- their subsidiaries/assoclates are as below:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
HSBC Holdings B.V., Netherlands, the holding Company 34,579,634 34,579.63 34,579,634 34,579.63
HSBC Finance {Netherlands), holding Company of the Company's 867,139 967.14 967,139 967.14
holding Company
HSBC Group Nominees UK Limited, UK, subsidiary of the Company's 8 0.01 8 0.01

ultimate holding Company
Total . 35,546,781 35,546.78 35,546,781 35,546.78
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As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Note 12: Other equity

Particulars

Secunliay prefuum reserve 5,564,72 5,564.72
Genera) resosve 835053 635053
Share options outsvanding account 1,267.11 1,267.31
Retained earnings 130.701.58 107,962.49
Jotal 145,883.94 123,144.85

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2020
{iiSecunties pramium esetve

Particulars

Opening balance 5.568.74 5.564.72

U:uir|5 balance 5,564.72 § 561.72
As at 3) March 2021 As st 31 Masch 2020

{iGeneral reserve

Pasticulars

Oparung balanco 835053 835953

Llosing batente 3,350.53 8,350.53

. As 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
{m)Share aplicns outstanding account

Pacticulars

Opering balance 3.26711 2126711
Employee stoch agtion expense - -
Cosing bolance 1,267.11 1,167.13

As 8131 March 2021 As 3t 31 March 2020
iv)Retained earnings

Particutars
QOpening bajance 107,962.¢9 54,269 83
Hey peolit for the year 62,580.88 $3,405.23
Rems of other comprehensive income recognised directly th retained earnings

fp: oloy benefit obhgation net of tax 326.08 286.43
Oridends® $36,151.08} -
Tax an Omidends 14.016.79) -
Closing halance 130,701.58 107,962.49

* Owidend per shate of INR 113 pes share for 35,546,781 number of shares cuistanding as st date.

Wature and purpose of reserves
Securities premium reserve
Secuntigs premium reserve is used (o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utidised m accordance wath the provisions of the Companies Aa 2013,

General reserve
General ceserve s used for stzengihemng Lhe financat position and meeting future contingencies and fosses.

Share oplions outstanding account
Shate opiions cutstanding account is used 10 recagnise the gsant date fair vatue of oplions issued 1o the emptoyees under HSBC Share plans.

Nolo 13: Financlat labilities
Naote 13{a} Cutrent borrowings
tMaturity date and

Particulars teems of payment Interest eate  As at 31 March 2021, As at 31 March 2020
Secured
Working capitat fosn lrom Bank Paysbte on demand 10% - 15,000.00
Tota! . 15,000.00
Net Debt Reconciliation
This sectlon sats out the changas In fiabi arising from (i 1 ivities in the of cash flows:
As at 31 March 2021 Asat 31 March 2020

Cash and ¢ash equrvalents 101,624.41 101,378 53
Cutrent barrowings . {15,000 00)
Lease hability 156,204.75) {69,250 45}
Net cash snd cash Esuiva!!m; 45,419.66 17,128.08

Cash and cash equivalents Current borrowings Lease liability Total
Net cash and cash equivalenis as 21 03 Ap:l 2019 38,089.63 30,000.00 80,27396 {72,184.23}
Cosh flows 60,452.12 {18,000.00} 17,980.62) 93,043.74
Foreign exchange adjusiments 2,835.78 . . 2,835.78
Interest expenses - 3,048.52 6,9672.11 {10.035.63}
Interest pnaid . £3,048.52) - 3,04852
Net cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020 101,378.53 15,000.00. 69,250.45 17,128.08
Net debt as at 0 Aprif 2020 101,378.53 15.000.00 69,250.35 17,128.08
Cash fipws (319.75¢ {15,060.00} {16,785.92) 31,466.13
Foreign exchange adjustmenty $65.67 . . 565.67
Lease madifications . - {2.186.73) 2,156,291
Interest expenses - 42).74 5.896.93 (6,318.67}
Interest paid - {421.7¢} . anza
et cash and cash ngu‘walenlv as at 31 Marth 2021 101,624.41 - 56.204.7S 45,419.66
Note 13(b}: Lease Liahitity

As at 3% March 2021 As at 31 Morch 2020

Particulars Current Non-current Current Ron-current
Lease liatlity 11,491.95 44.712.80 10,657.31 $8.593.14
Totat 11,491.85 44,712.80 10,652.31 $8,593.12
Note 13(c): Trade payables
Particulars fs at 31 aMarch 2021 .As at 31 March 2020
Trade payable to other parties 10,241.72 6,745.12
Trade payables to related parties {refer note 26 Diuj} 3.163.54 297751
T gro enterprises 3nd smalt

13,405.26 9,722.63
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Note 13(d} Othar financisl abilities

Particutars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Payabla to retated partias {refer note 26 DY)
Share save fiabhity i53.22. -
Poyable to ather
Capital treditors 33664 439.41
Boak overdraft 89.00 6.41
Derivatives 65,37 .
Share aption scheme payable 71145 736 41
‘total 1,353,68 1,182.2)
Note 18; Provisiens
Particulars As at 31 March 2621 As 3t 31 March 2020

Current Non-current Cusrant Nangyreent
Provision for VAT ltegatons {refer note 31) 236.33 . 236133 -
(net of atnaunt paid under protest for 1N 88.5a (2020: INA 88.54) - . -
Provisian for service taelitigation (refer note 31) 1,301 64 . 1,301,648 .
Decommssioning liabihty* {refer sote 31) . 5,139.60 . $.166 10

Tatat 1%3 ? 5,139.50 1,532.97 5,166.10
TRIISSIONING TABIly On Tease properties hai beon created a neepuon of lease per 330d cn man; eals estimate of cash vutllows’

discounted at the rate equal 1o govespinent bond rate plus 1% nisk premum, Interest 5 upwinded in each penod on the decommussiorung fiabdity imbially ereated
uniyl the bability bas been estinguished.

Note 15: Employec benofit obligatisns

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Current, Non-current Curient Non-current
Gratuity . 5,766.71 . 8,410.23
Leave obfigation 4,852.25 . : -
Tatal 4,852.25 5,266,711 N 8,410.23

i) Post employment obligations

o} Grotulty
The Company provides for gratuity for employces in India as par the Payment of Geatutiy Act, 1972, Employees who are in t for 3 pened
of 4.5 years are eligible (or pratuty. The amuumt of gratuny payable on retuement/ 5 the yees jasl deawn baset satary per month computed

proportianatety lor 15 days safary muttiplied by the number of years of service The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contribulions io its
vust admnistered by UC The Company does not {ully funa the bability and mamtains 3 target fovel of funding 1o be mamtamed over a persod of ime based on
estimations of expected graluity payouts.

b} Defined contribution plans

The Company also has cestam dolined contudution plans. Contributiens made 10 Provident Funid in India for employees at the rate of 12% of bagsiz satary s per
regulations, The cantebutions are made 1o regi: P dem fund adi ed by the The obligation af the Company is hmited to the aimoun:
contributed and 2 has ao further conteaciual nor any contractual obhigatian. The expense recognised dunag the period towards defined contnbutian plan s Rs.

13.276.39 {31 March, 2020: Rs. 13,169,02)

The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the moverent in the net dafined henefit obligation over the year are o3 follows:

Partieulars Present valua of obligation Falr vatun of plan assets Net amount
As 4131 March 2019 30,294,12 {20,265.89) 10.028.23
Current service cost 5.081.88 . 5.041.88

Past'service cost

interesi expense/{income) 2,i98.27 (1,701.67} 496.60

Total amount recopnised ln profit or loss 2,280.15 [1,701.67) 5,578.48
Remeasurements

SReturn on plan asseis, exduting amounts included in

nierest expense/{income) . 34958 349,98

«{Gain)fLoss trom change in demographic assumptions
interest expense/(income])
«{Gam}/Loss from change in tinanaal 3ssumpticns

interast expense/(income) {654,217 + (654.27)

~Experience (gains}flosics

interest o_xnenu/(nmome) (78,48) - 178.43)
Total amaount r ised In other prehensh
intome {732.75) 349.98 {382.77)
Employer contributions . - {6.813.71) (6.813.71)
Benefit payments (3.957.50) 1,967.50 -
As at 31 March 2020 34,872.02 (26,463.79) 8,410.23
Current service cost $.519.86 - $.519.86
Past service <05t . - .
Interest expense/{income) 2,282.85 {2,004.32) 27883
Totat smount recognised In profis oe loss 7,802.71 {2,004.32) 5,798.39
Remeasurements

‘Retwrn on plan assels, excuding amounss included 1n
neress sapense/(inconic) . 111.83) {111.83)
~-{Galn}/10ss from change n demogaplhiic

assumptions
tmerest expense/(income) .

{Gamn}ftoss (ram change in financial assumpiions
interest expense/(income) .
~Experience {gains)flosses

interest ugenssam:omn! {323.92) {323.92)

Totat amount ised in othes hens

incame (323.92) {111.83) {035.75)
Employer contributions - {8.508.16} (B.506.16)
Benefit pgyments {1,603,22) 1.603.22 -

As at 31 March 2021 80,749.59 {35.482.88) $.266.71
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el lability disclosed above is as foltows:
Pasticulars

As at 31 tarch 2021

As at 31 Macch 2020

Peesent vatue of funded obligotians 40,749.59 34,870.02
Fau value of plan assets 135.482.88) (26,463.7)
Oefictt of fundad plan 5,266.71 4,410.13
unjundzgd plans - -
Deficit of Lratulty E"" 5,265.71 8,610.23
Sigmhigant Actuarnial ang
Particulars A3 81 31 March 2021 A3 at 31 March 2020
Duscount rate 6.70% 670%
Salary growmh rate 5.C0% 9.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 yeors
Aunnonrite
Upto 20 years 20.00% 20 00%
21-25 years 20.00% 20.00%
26-20 years 20.00% 20.00%
33-28 years 13.00% 13.00%
36-40 years 9.00% 9.00%
43-48 yeary 7.00% 7.00%
46-50 years 65.00% 6.90%
53-55 years 5.00% 600%
56-60 years 5.00% 5.00%
indra assured lives India assuscd bives
Marsakity rale mortality {2005-G8) mortality {2006-08)
imedidied Uk imodified) Ult

Sensitteity analysis

Change In assumption

tmpact on defined benefit obligation
lacresse in assumption

Decrense In ossumption

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 32 March 2021 31.Mdrch2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Oncauai rate 0.5% 0.5% {2.003.48) (1,732.59) 217231 3.660.91

Satary growih rare 1% 1% 4,290.23 2.,602.78 {3.815.95) (3,298.02)
Auntion fate % m {1,462.67) {1,320.97) 185239 367230

The above senstivity analysis are based on 3 change in assumption while holding other assumplions constant. In pracuce, this is untikely to occur, and changns in some of the assumptions may be

carcetated. When caledtating sensutivety of ihe defined benefit abligstion 10 signilicant actuasial assumptions the same method {Present value of defincd benefin

d with the srejecied

anit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been apphied as when calculating the defined bendfit hability recogaiscd in the Satance sheei,

The major category of plan assets are :

¢
ot {

undiscounted expected benelit payout

! productsi

As at 31 Mareh 2023
100%

As at 33 March 2023

A at 31 tarch 2020
100%

A3 21 31 March 2020

< 3years 2,833.88 2,6460,48
1-5 years 15,905.78 13,979.3%
>S5 years 27,818,592 25,309,60

Risk exposure : Through s defined benelit plans, the Company is exposed to 2 number of risks. the most sigaficant of wiich are detaded below:

1} Interest rate risk : The delined benelit ohligation cateulated utes a discaunt rate based on goverament bonds. if bond vields fall, the

defined benefit obligatron will tend to increase.

2) Salary tnflation rlsk : Higher than expected increases i salary will increase the defined benefit obhigavion,

3) Demographic risk : This {s the tisk of varlability of results due to t 1ic aature of di that include iy, withdrawal,

disability and reurement. The efteas of these docrements on the defined benefit obligation s not sitaight forward and depends upon the combiation <f salary
increase, discount sate and vexiing critena. [t is impottant aot 1o ovesstate withdrawals because 1n the fnandial anatysis the retisement henafit of o shart cireet
emplayee typicalty costs tess per year as compared 10 a tang service employee.

{i} tasve obligstions
The leave gbligations coves the entny's babifity for earned leave which ase classified as other short-tesm benelits,
The entire amount of the provision of INR 4,857.25 (31 March 2020 ~ INA Nill 15 presented as carrent, sinca the entity does not have an urcendional night 1o defec

settlement for any of these obligatians,

Note 16: Currens tax llabitities

Particulses As a1 31 March 2021 As 81 31 March 2020
Opening balance 42.84 2,660,948
Cusrent tax payable 24,054.00 22,654.12
Less: Taxes patd (22,608.72) (25,252,221
Total 1,496.07 42,84

Note 17: Other current lizbilities
Particulars

As 2131 March 2021

As 2y 31 March 2020

statutery dues pavable 25,145,69 24,325,01
Employse benelits payadle 14,495.20 13,206.34
Total 39,640.89 35532.36
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts In Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March-2020
Note 18: Revenue. from operations
Particulars
Sale of back office services (refer note 26)
to customers within India 20,238.90 23,683.37
to customers ouisice india- 530,942.27 507.346.30
Total §51,181.17 531,029.67
Year.ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 19: Other income
Particulars .
Interest on term deposits {refer nodte 26) 1,725.59 1,204.86
Interest unwinding on security deposit 681.70 727.25
Net gain on foreigh currency transaction and translation . 8,570.22
Gain on revarsal of lease liability 599.87 -
Miscellangous income 22.67 2093
Total 3,029.83 10,523.26
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 20: Employee benefits expenses
Particulars
Salaries, wages and bonus {refer note 26} 306,547.32 295,765.73
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note (3) below) 13,276.39 13,169.02
Gratuity {refer note 15) 5,798.39 5,578.48
Staff welfare expenses T 3,682.07 3,978.35
Total 329,264.17 318,491.58
Note (a) : Break-up of contributions to Provident & other funds
Contribution to Provident fund 12,877.14 12,851.52
Contribution to National pension scheme 399.25 317.50
13,276.39 13,169.02
Yearended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 21: Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,525.57 12,189.35
Depreciation of Right of use assets 14,605.91 16,346.52
Amortization of intangible assets 1531.29 519.97
Total 29,282.77 28,055.84
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 22: Finance cost
Particufars
Unwinding of interest on decommissioning liability 446.94 416.61
interest on borrowing (refer note 26) 421.74 3,048.52
Interest on lease lability 5,896.93 6,967.11

Total . 6,765.61 10,432.24




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amaunts In Indian rupees lakhs, except share data ang where otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note 23: Other expenses
Particulars
Traveling and conveyance 823.73 15,877.68
Rent (refer note 26) 676.10 947.91
Recruitment and relocation 4,305.91 3,286.48
Power and fuel 2,837.57 6,618.93
Repairs and maintenarice
- equipment 2,752.51 1,766.56
- buildings 8,700.84 8,996.63
- others 4,238:64 4,586.01
Software maintenance {refer note 26) 33,482.80 29,825.08
Legal and professional 27,746.84 18,838.52
Office expenses 522.61 6.79
Staff training expenses 2,261.32 3,191.12
Foreign exchange loss,net 2,105.75 -
Insurance 4,434.31 4,045.72
Communication 5,186.72 3,122.25
Printing and stationery 517.32 254.69
Bank charges {refer note 26) 315.70 224.38
Rates and taxes 350.15 383.04
Auditors’ remuneration (refer note 29) 38.16 34.50
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) (refer note 30) 1,516.86 1,398.06
Net loss on sate of fixed assels 457.69 86.22
Assets written off 518.96 -
Miscellaneous expenses 804.29 732.9%
Total 104,609.78 104,223.96
Note 24: Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended

a) Recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Domestic taxes - cufrent year
Domaestic taxes - prior year
Foreign taxes,

Total current tax

Deferred tax
Domestic taxes
Total income tax expenses

31 March 2021

31 mMarch 2020

24,043.37 23,096.58
416.26 {a51.35)
10.63 8.89
24,470.26 22,654.12
{2.762.47) 3,288.96
21,707.79 25,943.08

* The Company has entered into an Advance Pricing Agreement under Section 32CC of the tncome Tax Act, 1961 on 29 August 2016 which is effective from
Financial Year 2014-15 till Financlal Yéar 2018-19. The Company has filed for the renewal of APA agreement which will be valid from the FY 2018-20 til FY

2023-24.
b} Recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 march 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax
In respect of the currant year 109.67 96.34
109.67 96.34
The tncome tax éxpense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prafit before tax from continuing operations 84,288.67 79,349.31
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2019-20 :25.168%) 21,213.77 19,870.63
Effect.of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 210.65 219.27
Adjustment on account of change in Income tax rate from previous year - 6,280.16
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 416.26 {451.35}
Others {132.89) [75.63)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 21,707.79 25,943.08




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 25: Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at As at
31 March | 31 March
2021 2020

{i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

Income tax claims, including interest and penalty, pending decisions an
various appeals made by the Company, net of amounts provided in
books {NR Nil {previous year INR Nil} (amounts paid under protest INR 13,313.96 | 13,581.50
8,787.66 (2020 - INR 8,787.66)

(a)

(b) Value added tax claim, pending decision on appeal made by the
Company 12,158.78 | 12,158.78

Service tax claims, including penalty on irregular availment of service
tax credit on ineligible input services and non-payment of service tax for
the period FY 2010-2011 to FY 2014-2015, pending decision on appeal 3,276.67 3,276.67
made by the Company

Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not
provided for.

The Company had received a favorable order from the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal on account of
disputed Income Tax Litigations for the Financial Years 2002-03 to 2004-05 and 2006-07 to 2008-09.
Subsequently the consequential refund order was passed by the assessing officer. However the income
Tax Department has gone for further appeals to the Hon’ble High Court challenging the grounds, but no
furtner demand has been raised. Accordingly, pending adjudication by the Hon’ble High Court the impact
cannot be quantified.

(c)

(ii) 1,080.29 | 2,492.48

i)

Note 26: Related parties

A) Parties where control exists

S. No. | Name of the party Relationship
1 HSBC Holdings plc Ultimate holding company
2 HSBC Holdings B.V. tmmediate holding company

B) Parties under common control

$.No. | Name of the party

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong, India Branch (“HSBC Bank
India Branch”}

HSBC Professional Services {India) Private Limited

HSBC Software Development (India) Private Limited
HSBC Asset Management (India) Private Limited

HSBC Global Services Limited

HSBC Bank plc.

HSBC Finance Transformation (UK) Ltd

HSBC Finance Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
10 HSBC Technology & Services (USA} Inc.

i1 HSBC Service Delivery (Polska) Sp. z 0.0.

—
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amountsin Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

12 | HSBC investDirect Financial Services (india) Limited

13 HSBC Software Development {Guangdong) Limited

14 HSBC Software Development (Malaysia) Sdn'Bhd

15 HSBC Bank Canada

16 HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

17 HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (India) Private Limited

18 HSBC Global Asset Management (France)

19 HSBC Bank {Singapore)} Limited

20 HSBC Global Services (UK) Lirnited )

21 Th.e Hongkong and Sharighai Banking Corporation Limited, Phillipines Branch
22 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Sri Lanka Branch
23 HSBC Global Services (Hong Kong) Limited

HSBC EDPI Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance - Post employee benefit
plan*

25 HSBC PB Services (Suisse) SA

26 HSBC Global Services (CANADA) LTD

27 HSBC Group Management Services Limited

28 HSBC Electronic Data Pracessing (Guangdong) Limited

24

29 HSBC Electronic Data Service Delivery {Egypt) S.A.E.

30 HS8C Electronic Data Processing {Philippines), Inc.

31 HSBC Electronic Data Processing Lanka (Private} Limited
32 HSBC Global Services (China) Holdings Limited

33 Electronic Data Process Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

34 HSBC Continental Europe.
*Refer note 15 for information on transactions with post employee benefit plan mentioned

C) Key managerial personnel:

S.No. | Name of party ' Relationship
1 Delphine Antonutti Director
2 Paul Anthony Raddon Director
3 Prasad S Ravi Director {(Upto 24 November 2020)
4 Mark Body | Director {Effective 03 December 2019)
S Mamatha Madireddy Director {Effective 07 June 2021)




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

D) Particulars of related party transactions

i. Following is a summary of significant related party transactians:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Income from back office services:

- HSBC Global Services Limited 530,942.27 507,346.30

- HSBC Bank India Branch 18,072.37 20,511.65

-.Others 2,166.53 3,171.72

Other income:

Interest earned on fixed deposit:

- HSBC Bani India Branch 1,725.59 1,204.86

Other expenses (other than HSBC Bank India Branch):

- HSBC Global Services UK Ltd 15,624.03 11,365.64

- HSBC Holdings plc 6,600.78 8,593.52

- HSBC Global Services (Hong Kong) Limited 4,102.21 3,916.97

- Others 5,824.67 5,545.31

Transactions with HSBC Bank India Branch:

- Rent and utility expenses 336.91 232.89

- Bank charges 315.70 224.38

- Interest on borrowing 421.74 3,048.52

- Borrowing/ {Repayment) during the year {15,000.00) 15,000.00

Other transactions (capital expenditure):

- HSBC Global Services UK Ltd 361.12 220.18

- HSBC Software Development {India) Private Ltd 31.73 394.50

Other transactions (sale of fixed assets):

- HSBC Bank India Branch 13.96 -

li. Following is the summary financial guarantees with HSBC Bank India Branch:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Bank financial guarantees 12,797.03 12,730.56




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

iti. The Company has the following balances with related parties:

Particulars As at As at
‘ 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Trade Receivables:

- HSBC Global Services Limited 41,500.01 43,320.77

- Others 2,976.92 2,479.24

Balances held in bank accounts:

- HSBC Bank India Branch 100,258.25 100,809.17

- HSBC Bank pic (held outside India) 1,366.16 569.36

| Trade Payables (amounts net of TDS/WHT wherever applicable)

- HSBC Glabal Services {UK) Limited 2,295.51 1,230.45

- HSBC Holdings plc {7.45) 615.60

- HSBC Bank pic 1,161.47 413.11

- HSBC Software Development (India) Private Ltd 73.34 344.48

- HSBC Global Services (Hong Kong) Limited (512.41) 207.31

- Others 153.08 166.55

Due to: (included in Other financial liabilities)

- HSBC Asset Management {India) Private Limited 7.47 -

- HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (india) Private Limited 76.80 -

- HSBC Software Development (India) Private Limited 68.95

Current borrowing:

- The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited - 15,000.00

Note: Due to the voluminous nature of information to be provided in respect of deposit/withdrawal/ renewal
of the bank accounts {Current account, Export Earners Foreign Currency account and Deposit accounts) held
with HSBC Bank India Branch, only the closing balance of balances held with the bank has been provided.

£} Transactions with key management personnel

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salaries, bonus and allowances ] 551.88 622.42
Perquisites 268.59 194.33
Total 820.47 816.75
Details of remuneration paid to key management personnel are given in Annexure|.
Note 27: Earnings per share
particulars - Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit after tax 62,580.88 53,406.23
We|ghteq avefage number qf . equity shares 35,546,781 35,546,781
outstanding during the year — Basic
Basic Earnings per share — Par value of INR 100 176.05 150.24

*There is no dilution as there are no dilutive equity shares




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 28: Segment Information

The Company is in the business of providing electronic data processing, call center and professional services
collectively referred as ‘back office services' to various overseas entities of the HSBC group. The Company does
not make any distinction amongst the various HSBC group entities serviced and accordingly it has been assessed
that there Is only one reportable segment.

Geographical segment of the Company as follows:

Particulars Segment Revenue by location of customer Non-current assets by location of
customer

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

UK 530,842.27 507,346.30 - -

India 20,238.90 23,683.37 115,381.03 126,279.35

Total 551,181.17 531,029.67 115,381.03 126,279.35
Refer note 26{D) for revenues from major customers of the Company.

Note: 29: Details of payment to auditors

Particulars Year ended Year cnded

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Audit fees 33.90 29.90

Tax audit fees 2.50 2.50

Certification fees 1.50 1.50

Reimbursement of expenses 0.26 1.00

Total 38.16 34.90

Note 30: Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

The Company had to spend INR 1,516.86 {2020: 1,398.06} towards CSR activities, computed as per the
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule Vil. The management has donated
an amount of INR 1,516.86 (2020: 1,398.06) to charitable organizations towards CSR activities during the year
ended March 31, 2021. Refer the disclosures below in respect of CSR expenditure:

(a) The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is INR 1,516.86 {2020: INR 1,398.06).
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year is INR 1,516.86 (2020: INR 1,398.06).
{c) Amount spent during the year on:

Year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
il} On purposes other than above 1,516.86 - 1,516.86

Year ended 31 March 2020:

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - - .
ii) On purposes other than above 1,398.06 - 1,398.06
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 31: Provision against tax litigation, legal matters and Decommissioning liability

Provision for income tax matters: Provision for income tax matters is {argely in respect of transfer pricing and
other expense disallowance related litigations. Cash flows, if any, are expected on completion of
assessments/adjudication by the relevant authorities.

Income Tax As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 10,478.69 10,478.69
Add: Provision/(reversal) made during the year - -
Closing balance 10,478.69 10,478.69

Provision for service tax litigation: Provision for service tax matter is related to Non-payment of service tax on
intermediary services provided to employees of group entities Outcome of the same is dependent on the
completion of assessments/adjudication by the relevant authorities.

Provision for service tax litigation As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 1,301.62 1,304.13
Add: Provision/(reversal) made during the year - (2.49)
Closing balance 1,301.64 1,301.64

Provision for VAT litigation: Provision for VAT relate to difference in taxable values and Penalty for non
compliance of Customs Act & VAT 2003. Outcome of the same is dependent on the cash flows, if any, are
expected on completion of assessments/adjudication by the relevant authorities.

Provision against VAT Litigations 31 March ‘2\;;; 31 March ‘2\;;(;
Opening balance 236.33 236.33
Add: Provision/{reversal) made during the year - -
Less: Amounts paid under protest - -
Closing balance 236.33 236.33

Decommissioning liability: Provision for decommissioning liability is on account of expected cost to be incurred

for restoring the (easehold premises to the original state.

Decommissioning liability As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
QOpening balance 5,166.10 4,749.49
Add: Interest unwinding 446.94 416.61
Add: Provision/(reversal) made during the year {473.54) -
Closing balance 5,139.50 5,166.10




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Nates to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 32: Amounts payable to micro, small and medium enterprises

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006’ (MSMED) is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of
such vendors under the said Act, as per intimation received from the vendors at the request of the Company.
The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Particul
articulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) The principal amount due to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

{ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end

{iii) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

{iv} interest paid other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act,
to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - -
appointed day during the year

{v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day - -
during the year {
{vi} Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered i
under MSMED Act, for payments already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier
years,

Note 33: Capital management
{a) Risk management

The Company has equity capital and other reserves attributable to shareholders as the source of capital along
with borrowings from HS8C Bank.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net debt - 15,000.00
Total equity 181,430.72 158,691.63
Net debt to equity ratio - 9.45%

(b)'Dividends

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Dividend paid {inclusive of dividend distribution tax) 40,167.87 -

Note 34: Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange
forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposure. Derivatives are used exclusively for
hedging and not as trading or speculative instruments.
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
A) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, iristruments carried at amortized cost and deposits with banks,
as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

(i) Credit risk management

A. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with
banks with high credit ratings assigned by external agencies.
B. Credit risk on security deposits, trade receivables and contract assets are evaluated as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2021:

(a) Expected credit loss for financial assets where general model is applied

Particulars Asset Estimated gross | Expected Expected Carrying
group carrying amount | probability of | creditloss | amount net of

at default default provision
Financial assets for which | Security 8,348.18 - - 8,348.18

credit risk has not increased | deposits

significantly since initial

recognition

- Loss allowance
measured at 12 month
expected credit losses

{b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

Particulars Less than or equal to More than Total
6 months 6 months
Gross carrying amount 44,476.93 - 44,476.93

Expected credit lass rate - - -
Expected credit oss {loss allowance provision} - - -
Carrying amount of trade receivables and 44,476.93 - 44,476.93
contract assets

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of
the'loss rates for the contract assets.

Year ended 31 March 2020:

(a) Expected credit loss for financial assets where general model is applied

Particulars Asset Estimated gross | Expected Expected Carrying
group carrying amount | probability of | creditloss | amount net of

at default default provision
Financial assets for which | Security 8,775.82 - - 8,775.82

credit risk has not increased | deposits

significantly since initial

recognition

- Loss allowance
measured at 12 month
expected credit losses




HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts ifi Indian rupees 1akhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables and contract assets under simplified approach:

Particulars Less than or equal to More than Total
6 months | 6 months

Gross carrying amount- 45,800.01 - 45,800.01

Expected credit loss rate - - -

Expected credit loss {loss allowance provision) - - -

Carrying amount of trade receivables and 45,800.01 - 45,800.01

contract assets.

Reconciliation of loss allowance:

Particulars Trade receivables Security deposits
and contract asset
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 - .
Add/(Less): allowance created/(reversed)during the year - -
Loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Add/(Less): allowance created/(reversed)during the year - -
| Loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 - -

Significant estimates and judgments:
Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Campany uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as farward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding to meet
obligations when due and 'to close out market positions, Company’s treasury maintains flexibiiity in funding by
maintaining availability under deposits in banks.

Management monitors cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generaily carried
by local management in accordance with practice and limits set by the HSBC group.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Expiring within one year (other facilities) 30,000.00 15,000.00
(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
Contractual maturities of financial Less than 12 Greater than 12 Total
liabilities as at 31 March 2021 months months
Lease liability 11,491.95 44,712.80 56,204.75
Trade Payable 13,405.26 - 13,405.26
Capital creditors 334.64 - 334.64
Book overdraft 89.00 - 89.00
Derivative financial liability 65.37 - 65.37
Share save liability 153.22 - 153.22
Share option scheme payable 711.45 - 711.45
Total ] 26,250.89 44,712.80 70,963.69
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Contractual maturities of financial Less than 12 Greater than 12 Total
liabilities as at 31 March 2020 months months

Current borrowing 15,000.00 - 15,000.00
Lease liability 10,657.31 58,593.14 69,250.45
Trade Payables 9,722.63 - 9,722.63
Capital creditors 439.41 - 439.41
Book overdraft 6.41 - 6.41
Share option scheme payable 736.41 - 736.41
Total 36,562.17 58,593.14 95,155.31

€} Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company operates in 3 business that exposes it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, primarily with respect to the USD and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The
objective of the Company is to minimize the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast

transactions.

As per the risk management policy, maximum of 80% of total local currency costs are hedged.

Exposure As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

uso GBP usp G8p
Foreign currency assets
- Trade receivables 41,500.01 - 35,600.53 7,720.24
- Cash and bank 4,633.11 1,414.23 25,059.50 5,464.76
Foreign currency liabilities
- Payables (326.53) 3,406.18 372.77 2,256.79

(i) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated

financial instruments and from foreign forward exchange contracts:

impact on profit

Particulars
Year ended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% 824.33 606.10
INR/USD ~ Decrease by 1% (824.33) (606.10)
GBP Sensitivity
INR/GBP - Increase by 1% {19.83) 108.57
INR/GBP - Decrease by 1% 19.83 (108.57)
=T
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 35: Fair value measurements
financial instruments by category and hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates madeé in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and {b) measured at amortized cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Accounting Standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

As at As at

Level 31 March 2021 _ 31 March 2020

FVPL l Amortized cost FVPL Amortized cost
Financial assets:
Derivative financial asset L2 - - - -
Security Deposits L3 - 8,348.18 - 8,775.82
Trade Receivables L3 - 44,476.93 - 45,800.01
Cash and cash equivalents L3 - 101,624.41 - 101,378.53
Total Financial assets - 154,449.52 - 155,954.36
Financial liabilities:
Current borrowing 3 . . ' . 15,000.00
Lease liability L3 -3 56,204.75 - 69,250.45
Trade Payables L3 - 13,405.26 - 9,722.63
Capital creditors L3 - 334.64 - 43941
Boak overdraft L3 - 89.00 - 6.41
Derivative financial liability L3 - 65.37 - -
Share save liability 13 - 153.22 - -
Share option scheme payable | L3 - 711.45 - 736.41
Total Financial liabilities . 70,963.69 - 95,155.31

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The Company has no
financial instruments which have been valued based on Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (viz foreign exchange
forwarg contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities which are included in Level 3.

Valuation technigue used to determine fair value

specific valuation techniques used to value financial instrurnents include:

. the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using value of such foreign
exchange forward contracts for the remaining maturity as at the Balance Sheet date.

. the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis.
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HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Valuation process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes; and report to the Board of Directors.

As at As at
Level 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value [ Carrying Value
Financial assets:
Derivative financial asset L2 - - - -
Security Deposits L3 8,348.18 8,348.18 8,775.82 8,775.82
Trade Receivables L3 44,476.93 44,476.93 45,800.01 45,800.01
Cash and cash equivalents L3 101,624.41 101,624.41 101,378.53 101,378.53
Total Financial assets 154,449.52 154,449.52 155,954.36 155,954.36
Financial liabilities:
Current borrowing L3 - - 15,000.00 15,000.00
Lease liability L3 56,204.75 56,204.75 69,250.45 69,250.45
Trade Payables L3 13,405.26 13,405.26 9,722.63 9,722.63
Capital creditors L3 334.64 334.64 439.4] 439.4]1
Book overdraft L3 89.00 89.00 6.41 6.41
Derivative financial liability L3 65.37 65.37 - -
Share save liability L3 153.22 153.22 - -
Share option scheme payable | L3 711.45 711.45 736.41 736.41
Total Financial liabilities 70,963.69 70,963.69 95,155.31 95,155.31

a.  The carrying amount of current financial assets and current financial liabilities carried at amortized
cost are considered to be the same as their fair value due to their short-term nature.

b.  For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are
equal to the fair value.

Note 36: Employee share based payments

Eligible employees of the Company have been granted options/awards of equity shares of the ultimate holding
company HSBC Haldings plc. As per the schemes, these options/awards vest in a graded manner over an average
period of one to five years. The Company has included INR 393.32 (2019-20: INR 863.62) of these costs under
'Salary, wages and bonus’ in Note 20.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 37: Management assessment of COVID outbreak:

The Novel Corona Virus {COVID-19) outbreak continues to spread rapidly across the globe including india causing
major disruptions to business and economic activities. Developments around the COVID-19 pandemic so far
suggest that global and domestic economic growth is expected to be negatively impacted resulting disruption
of economic activity, which could impact the Company’s performance. The extent to which COViD19 pandemic
will impact the Company’s performance depends on future developments, which are highly uncertain and
dependent on circumstances as they evolve.

Management believes that COVID-19 pandemic will not have a material impact on the financial statements of
the Company, because it is Captive Group Service Center providing data processing, call center and professional
services {collectively referred to as “back office services”) to HSBC group companies. The impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature of the duration and the
Company will continue to monitor any rnaterial changes to future economic conditions.
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Annexure |:

Employee benefits expenses include key management personnel remuneration as follows:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salaries, bonus and allowances
Delphine Antonutti 219.40 227.02
Paul Anthony Raddon 332.48 395.40
Prasad S Ravi* - -
Mark Body® - -
Total 551.88 622.42
Perquisites
Delphine Antonutti 187.12 186.09
Paul Anthony Raddon 81.47 8.24
Prasad S Ravi* - -
Mark Body* - -
268.59 194.33
Total employee benefits ) 820.47 816.75

*Remuneration is borne by other group company.

The key management personnel are covered by the mediclaim insurance policy taken by the Company along
with other employees of the Company.
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